LETTER OPI NI ON
97-L-146

Sept enber 9, 1997

M. Mchael S. Mlntee

McHenry County State's Attorney
PO Box 90

Towner, ND 58788- 0090

Dear M. Ml ntee:

Thank you for your letter concerning possible changes in two voting
sites within your county in preparation for the June 1998 election

Both situations you posed in your letter concerned voting sites that
you state are not handicap accessible and that are also otherw se
unsui table for continued use as voting sites.

The first situation you presented concerns a voting place located in
a small city. You asked whether the county auditor my advise the
city of a range of possible options to nake the voting place handi cap
accessible, to locate a new voting place within the city, or to
authorize a voting place outside of the city. The authority to
designate and alter a voting place for precincts located within the
boundaries of an incorporated city lies with the governing body of
that city. ND C.C § 16.1-04-02(1).

The county auditor is the county admnistrator of elections.
N.D.C.C 8§ 16.1-01-01(4). In that capacity, the county auditor
certainly has the inplied authority to suggest ways of inproving the
el ectoral process to governing bodies of other political subdivisions
within the county to inprove the admnistration of elections and to
comply with | egal requi renments for el ecti ons. N.D.C C
§ 16.1-04-02(2) states:

The board of county comm ssioners of each county:

2. Shall provide that all voting places are accessible
to the elderly and the physically disabl ed.

N.D.C.C. 8§ 16.1-13-27 further provides:
Parking facilities at polling places nust be accessible to

the elderly and the physically disabled and nust be
clearly marked.
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| d. However, as you acknow edge in your letter, only the city
governing board has the authority to designate or alter the actual
voting site.

The voting site you suggest in your letter as an alternative is not
| ocated within the boundaries of the city in question. However, in a
prior opinion issued by this office, Attorney General Spaeth opined
t hat

a polling place may be |l ocated outside of a precinct if it
provides an enhancenment to the elective franchise by
increasing accessibility and ease of voting for purposes
of inplementing state and federal laws, as well as
providing a central voting place for all voters. It is
necessary that the polling place be designated by the
proper political subdi vi si on, that the election be
conducted in a fair and regular manner, and that a regul ar
canvas [sic] and return of the votes cast be nade.

This opinion is supported by NDCC 8§ 16.1-04-02(1)
which allows the city or county, as the case may be, to
alter the precinct voting places for “good and sufficient
reason.”

Letter from Attorney General N cholas J. Spaeth to Secretary of State
Ji m Kusl er (June 16, 1992) (copy encl osed).

Thus, the range of options which you suggested the county auditor
could present to the city governing body appears reasonable and
within the anbit of advice previously issued fromthis office.

The second situation you posed concerns a handicap inaccessible
township voting place within a particular county comm ssion district
(District A for purposes of this letter). You indicated that if this
voting place is closed, the nearest voting place within District Ais
20 mles away, although there is a city voting site within two nmles

in a different county comm ssion district (District B). | believe
that the June 16, 1992, opinion would be applicable to this situation
as well. It is possible that the polling place for the township in

question could be outside of District Aif it provides an enhancenent
to the elective franchise by increasing accessibility and ease of
voting for purposes of inplenenting election laws as well as
providing a central voting place for voters.

As provided in ND.CC § 16.1-04-02, for precincts not |ocated
within the boundaries of an incorporated city, the board of county
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comm ssioners “may alter the voting places when there is good and
sufficient reason.” The county and city could enter into an
agreenent to allow those township voters from District A to vote at
the city voting place in District B. See 1982 N.D. Op. Att'y Cen. 13
(“[W here the county comm ssioners establish a voting place for
persons residing within townships which are within different county
comm ssion districts, there appears to be no prohibition against the
comm ssioners providing separate ballots for the different types of
voters to ensure that the appropriate persons would be voting for the
appropri ate candi dates and neasures. Again, these are matters which
are solely within the discretion of the governing body of the cities
and counties.”).

In your letter you suggested the possibility of renedying the second
situation by use of the redistricting process whereby the affected
township in District A would be redistricted into District B and
anot her township of roughly equal population would be shifted from
District B to District A However, that does not appear to be a
viable solution since redistricting within a census interimmy only
be done for the purpose of equalizing districts or if county
comm ssioners are elected at |arge. Nei t her of those conditions is
apparently present here. See N.D.CC. § 11-07-02 (“[i]f any one
district in the county varies nore than ten percent from the average
popul ati on per comm ssioner in such county determ ned by dividing the
total population of the county at the |ast federal decennial census
by the nunber of conmssioners’ districts in such county, or if
county conmi ssioners are elected at large, the redistricting board
shall redistrict the county, as provided in this chapter.”).

Si ncerely,

Hei di Heit kanmp
ATTORNEY GENERAL

jif/pg
Encl osur e



